

INTERIOR/WBR-43, Real Estate Comparable Sales Data Storage, from its existing inventory. In an effort to streamline land and realty program functions, these systems of records notices are being rescinded as the systems have been incorporated into the newly published INTERIOR/Reclamation-14, Land and Realty Program system of records notice.

DATES: These changes take effect on March 20, 2020.

ADDRESSES: You may send comments identified by docket number [DOI-2019-0015] by any of the following methods:

- *Federal eRulemaking Portal:* <http://www.regulations.gov>. Follow the instructions for sending comments.

- *Email:* DOI_Privacy@ios.doi.gov. Include docket number [DOI-2019-0015] in the subject line of the message.

- *U.S. Mail or Hand-Delivery:* Teri Barnett, Departmental Privacy Officer, U.S. Department of the Interior, 1849 C Street NW, Room 7112, Washington, DC 20240.

Instructions: All submissions received must include the agency name and docket number [DOI-2019-0015]. All comments received will be posted without change to <http://www.regulations.gov>, including any personal information provided.

Docket: For access to the docket to read background documents or comments received, go to <http://www.regulations.gov>.

You should be aware your entire comment including your personal identifying information, such as your address, phone number, email address, or any other personal identifying information in your comment, may be made publicly available at any time. While you may request to withhold your personal identifying information from public review, we cannot guarantee we will be able to do so.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Regina Magno, Associate Privacy Officer, Bureau of Reclamation, P.O. Box 25007, Denver, CO 80225, privacy@usbr.gov or (303) 445-3326.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Pursuant to the provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974, as amended, the Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) is rescinding the following systems of records notices from its inventory:

- INTERIOR/WBR-15, Land Settlement Entries;
- INTERIOR/WBR-17, Lands—Leases, Sales, Rentals, and Transfers;
- INTERIOR/WBR-19, Mineral Location Entries;
- INTERIOR/WBR-22, Oil and Gas Applications;

- INTERIOR/WBR-28, Real Property and Right-of-Way Acquisitions;
- INTERIOR/WBR-29, Right-of-Way Applications;
- INTERIOR/WBR-32, Special Use Applications, Licenses, and Permits;
- INTERIOR/WBR-41, Permits; and
- INTERIOR/WBR-43, Real Estate Comparable Sales Data Storage.

During a review of these notices, Reclamation determined that these nine systems contained duplicative content and were managed by one System Manager in the land and realty program. In an effort to streamline land and realty program functions, improve consistency, eliminate duplicative content, and promote transparency, Reclamation modified the INTERIOR/WBR-14, Land Exchange system to incorporate these nine systems of records and published a revised notice, INTERIOR/Reclamation-14, Land and Realty Program, in the **Federal Register** at 84 FR 51614 (September 30, 2019). The modified system will help Reclamation manage the land and realty program and maintain an inventory of all land, facilities, and waterbodies under Reclamation's jurisdiction. Rescinding the nine systems of records notices will have no adverse impacts on individuals as these records are covered under the INTERIOR/Reclamation-14, Land and Realty Program, system of records notice. This rescindment will also promote the overall streamlining and management of Department of the Interior Privacy Act systems of records. This notice hereby rescinds the nine Reclamation systems of records notices identified below.

SYSTEM NAME AND NUMBER:

1. INTERIOR/WBR-15, Land Settlement Entries.
2. INTERIOR/WBR-17, Lands—Leases, Sales, Rentals, and Transfers.
3. INTERIOR/WBR-19, Mineral Location Entries.
4. INTERIOR/WBR-22, Oil and Gas Applications.
5. INTERIOR/WBR-28, Real Property and Right-of-Way Acquisitions.
6. INTERIOR/WBR-29, Right-of-Way Applications.
7. INTERIOR/WBR-32, Special Use Applications, Licenses, and Permits.
8. INTERIOR/WBR-41, Permits.
9. INTERIOR/WBR-43, Real Estate Comparable Sales Data Storage.

HISTORY:

1. INTERIOR/WBR-15, Land Settlement Entries, 64 FR 29876 (June 3, 1999); modification published at 73 FR 20949 (April 17, 2008).
2. INTERIOR/WBR-17, Lands—Leases, Sales, Rentals, and Transfers, 64

FR 29876 (June 3, 1999); modification published at 73 FR 20949 (April 17, 2008).

3. INTERIOR/WBR-19, Mineral Location Entries, 64 FR 29876 (June 3, 1999); modification published at 73 FR 20949 (April 17, 2008).

4. INTERIOR/WBR-22, Oil and Gas Applications, 64 FR 29876 (June 3, 1999); modification published at 73 FR 20949 (April 17, 2008).

5. INTERIOR/WBR-28, Real Property and Right-of-Way Acquisitions, 64 FR 29876 (June 3, 1999); modification published at 73 FR 20949 (April 17, 2008).

6. INTERIOR/WBR-29, Right-of-Way Applications, 64 FR 29876 (June 3, 1999); modification published at 73 FR 20949 (April 17, 2008).

7. INTERIOR/WBR-32, Special Use Applications, Licenses, and Permits, 64 FR 29876 (June 3, 1999); modification published at 73 FR 20949 (April 17, 2008).

8. INTERIOR/WBR-41, Permits, 64 FR 29876 (June 3, 1999); modification published at 73 FR 20949 (April 17, 2008).

9. INTERIOR/WBR-43, Real Estate Comparable Sales Data Storage, 64 FR 33504 (June 23, 1999); modification published at 73 FR 20949 (April 17, 2008).

Teri Barnett,

Departmental Privacy Officer, Department of the Interior.

[FR Doc. 2020-05920 Filed 3-19-20; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4332-90-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation Nos. 701-TA-627-629 and 731-TA-1458-1461 (Final)]

Utility Scale Wind Towers From Canada, Indonesia, Korea, and Vietnam; Scheduling of the Final Phase of Countervailing Duty and Anti-Dumping Duty Investigations

AGENCY: United States International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: The Commission hereby gives notice of the scheduling of the final phase of antidumping and countervailing duty investigation Nos. 701-TA-627-629 and 731-TA-1458-1461 (Final) pursuant to the Tariff Act of 1930 ("the Act") to determine whether an industry in the United States is materially injured or threatened with material injury, or the establishment of an industry in the United States is materially retarded, by

reason of imports of utility scale wind towers from Canada, Indonesia, Korea, and Vietnam, provided for in subheadings 7308.20.00 and 8502.31.00 of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United States, preliminarily determined by the Department of Commerce ("Commerce") to be subsidized and sold at less-than-fair-value.

DATES: February 14, 2020.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Ahdia Bavari ((202) 205-3191), Office of Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20436. Hearing-impaired persons can obtain information on this matter by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on 202-205-1810. Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at 202-205-2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server (<https://www.usitc.gov>). The public record for these investigations may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at <https://edis.usitc.gov>.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Scope.—For purposes of these investigations, Commerce has defined the subject merchandise as "Certain wind towers, whether or not tapered, and sections thereof. Certain wind towers support the nacelle and rotor blades in a wind turbine with a minimum rated electrical power generation capacity in excess of 100 kilowatts and with a minimum height of 50 meters measured from the base of the tower to the bottom of the nacelle (*i.e.*, where the top of the tower and the nacelle are joined) when fully assembled.

A wind tower section consists of, at minimum, multiple steel plates rolled into cylindrical or conical shapes and welded together (or otherwise attached) to form a steel shell, regardless of coating, end-finish, painting, treatment, or method of manufacture, and with or without flanges, doors, or internal or external components (*e.g.*, flooring/decking, ladders, lifts, electrical buss boxes, electrical cabling, conduit, cable harness for nacelle generator, interior lighting, tool and storage lockers) attached to the wind tower section. Several wind tower sections are normally required to form a completed wind tower."

Background.—The final phase of these investigations is being scheduled pursuant to sections 705(b) and 731(b) of the Tariff Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C.

1671d(b) and 1673d(b)), as a result of affirmative preliminary determinations by Commerce that certain benefits which constitute subsidies within the meaning of section 703 of the Act (19 U.S.C. 1671b) are being provided to manufacturers, producers, or exporters in Canada, Indonesia, Korea, and Vietnam of utility scale wind towers, and that such products are being sold in the United States at less than fair value within the meaning of section 733 of the Act (19 U.S.C. 1673b). The investigations were requested in petitions filed on July 9, 2019, by the Wind Tower Trade Coalition (Arcosa Wind Towers (Dallas, Texas) and Broadwind Towers, Inc. (Manitowoc, Wisconsin)).

For further information concerning the conduct of this phase of the investigations, hearing procedures, and rules of general application, consult the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, part 201, subparts A and B (19 CFR part 201), and part 207, subparts A and C (19 CFR part 207).

Participation in the investigations and public service list.—Persons, including industrial users of the subject merchandise and, if the merchandise is sold at the retail level, representative consumer organizations, wishing to participate in the final phase of these investigations as parties must file an entry of appearance with the Secretary to the Commission, as provided in section 201.11 of the Commission's rules, no later than 21 days prior to the hearing date specified in this notice. A party that filed a notice of appearance during the preliminary phase of the investigations need not file an additional notice of appearance during this final phase. The Secretary will maintain a public service list containing the names and addresses of all persons, or their representatives, who are parties to the investigations.

Limited disclosure of business proprietary information (BPI) under an administrative protective order (APO) and BPI service list.—Pursuant to section 207.7(a) of the Commission's rules, the Secretary will make BPI gathered in the final phase of these investigations available to authorized applicants under the APO issued in the investigations, provided that the application is made no later than 21 days prior to the hearing date specified in this notice. Authorized applicants must represent interested parties, as defined by 19 U.S.C. 1677(9), who are parties to the investigations. A party granted access to BPI in the preliminary phase of the investigations need not reapply for such access. A separate service list will be maintained by the

Secretary for those parties authorized to receive BPI under the APO.

Staff report.—The prehearing staff report in the final phase of these investigations will be placed in the nonpublic record on June 10, 2020, and a public version will be issued thereafter, pursuant to section 207.22 of the Commission's rules.

Hearing.—The Commission will hold a hearing in connection with the final phase of these investigations beginning at 9:30 a.m. on Thursday, June 25, 2020, at the U.S. International Trade Commission Building. Requests to appear at the hearing should be filed in writing with the Secretary to the Commission on or before June 18, 2020. A nonparty who has testimony that may aid the Commission's deliberations may request permission to present a short statement at the hearing. All parties and nonparties desiring to appear at the hearing and make oral presentations should participate in a prehearing conference to be held on June 24, 2020, at the U.S. International Trade Commission Building, if deemed necessary. Oral testimony and written materials to be submitted at the public hearing are governed by sections 201.6(b)(2), 201.13(f), and 207.24 of the Commission's rules. Parties must submit any request to present a portion of their hearing testimony *in camera* no later than 7 business days prior to the date of the hearing.

Written submissions.—Each party who is an interested party shall submit a prehearing brief to the Commission. Prehearing briefs must conform with the provisions of section 207.23 of the Commission's rules; the deadline for filing is June 17, 2020. Parties may also file written testimony in connection with their presentation at the hearing, as provided in section 207.24 of the Commission's rules, and posthearing briefs, which must conform with the provisions of section 207.25 of the Commission's rules. The deadline for filing posthearing briefs is July 2, 2020. In addition, any person who has not entered an appearance as a party to the investigations may submit a written statement of information pertinent to the subject of the investigations, including statements of support or opposition to the petition, on or before July 2, 2020. On July 23, 2020, the Commission will make available to parties all information on which they have not had an opportunity to comment. Parties may submit final comments on this information on or before July 27, 2020, but such final comments must not contain new factual information and must otherwise comply with section 207.30 of the Commission's

rules. All written submissions must conform with the provisions of section 201.8 of the Commission's rules; any submissions that contain BPI must also conform with the requirements of sections 201.6, 207.3, and 207.7 of the Commission's rules. The Commission's *Handbook on Filing Procedures*, available on the Commission's website at https://www.usitc.gov/documents/handbook_on_filing_procedures.pdf, elaborates upon the Commission's procedures with respect to filings.

Additional written submissions to the Commission, including requests pursuant to section 201.12 of the Commission's rules, shall not be accepted unless good cause is shown for accepting such submissions, or unless the submission is pursuant to a specific request by a Commissioner or Commission staff.

In accordance with sections 201.16(c) and 207.3 of the Commission's rules, each document filed by a party to the investigations must be served on all other parties to the investigations (as identified by either the public or BPI service list), and a certificate of service must be timely filed. The Secretary will not accept a document for filing without a certificate of service.

Authority: These investigations are being conducted under authority of title VII of the Tariff Act of 1930; this notice is published pursuant to section 207.21 of the Commission's rules.

By order of the Commission.

Issued: March 16, 2020.

Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2020-05847 Filed 3-19-20; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

Petitions for Duty Suspensions and Reductions: Notice That Comments Received on Previously Filed Petitions Are Available for Viewing on the Commission's Website

AGENCY: United States International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice that the Commission has published on its website comments received from the public on previously submitted petitions for duty suspensions and reductions.

SUMMARY: As required by the American Manufacturing Competitiveness Act of 2016, the Commission is publishing notice that comments received from the public on previously submitted petitions for duty suspensions and

reductions are now available for public viewing on the Commission's website.

ADDRESSES: All Commission offices are located in the United States International Trade Commission Building, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC. You may view the public file for this proceeding on the Commission's Miscellaneous Tariff Bill Petition System (MTBPS) website at <https://mtbps.usitc.gov>.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For general inquiries, contact Jennifer Rohrbach at mtbinfo@usitc.gov. For other inquiries, contact the Office of the Secretary, Docket Services, U.S. International Trade Commission, telephone (202) 205-3238. The media should contact Peg O'Laughlin, Public Affairs Officer (202) 205-1819 or margaret.olaughlin@usitc.gov. You may obtain general information concerning the Commission at <https://www.usitc.gov>.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Background: The American Manufacturing Competitiveness Act of 2016 (the Act), 19 U.S.C. 1332 note, established a process for the submission and consideration of requests for temporary duty suspensions and reductions. Section 3(b)(1) of the Act requires the Commission to initiate the process by publishing a notice requesting members of the public who can demonstrate that they are likely beneficiaries of duty suspensions or reductions to submit petitions and Commission disclosure forms to the Commission. The Commission published this notice in the **Federal Register** on October 11, 2019 (84 FR 54924). Consistent with Section 3(b)(1) of the Act, the notice required that petitions be submitted by the close of business on December 10, 2019.

Under Section 3(b)(3)(A) of the Act, within 30 days of the expiration of the period for filing petitions, the Commission must publish on its website the petitions received that contain the information required by the Act. Under section 3(b)(3)(B) of the Act, the Commission must also publish a notice in the **Federal Register** requesting members of the public to submit comments to the Commission on the petitions published on the Commission's website. On January 10, 2020, the Commission both published the petitions received on its website and published the required notice in the **Federal Register** (85 FR 1327) requesting members of the public to submit comments on those petitions no later than the close of business on February 24, 2020.

Section 3(b)(3)(B)(ii) of the Act requires the Commission to publish a notice in the **Federal Register** directing members of the public to a publicly available Commission website to view the comments on the petitions by members of the public that the Commission received. This notice satisfies that requirement. Members of the public may view those comments on the Commission's website at <https://mtbps.usitc.gov>.

The Commission is now preparing the reports that it is required to submit, under section 3(b)(3)(C) and (E) of the Act, to the House Committee on Ways and Means and the Senate Committee on Finance (the Committees) on the petitions for duty suspensions and reductions submitted. The Commission will submit its preliminary report to the Committees in June 2020 and its final report in August 2020. In preparing these reports, the Commission will consider the petitions and comments submitted, the report that the U.S. Department of Commerce (in consultation with U.S. Customs and Border Protection and other relevant Federal agencies) submits to the Commission under section 3(c) of the Act, and any other information that it considers appropriate.

By order of the Commission.

Issued: March 17, 2020.

Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2020-05906 Filed 3-19-20; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation Nos. 701-TA-616-617 and 731-TA-1432-1434 (Final)]

Fabricated Structural Steel From Canada, China, and Mexico

Determinations

On the basis of the record¹ developed in the subject investigations, the United States International Trade Commission ("Commission") determines, pursuant to the Tariff Act of 1930 ("the Act"), that an industry in the United States is not materially injured or threatened with material injury by reason of imports of fabricated structural steel from Canada, China, and Mexico, provided for in subheadings 7308.90.95, 7308.90.30, and 7308.90.60 of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United States, that have been found by

¹ The record is defined in sec. 207.2(f) of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR 207.2(f)).